
June 16, 2008 
6:00 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 
 The Common Council of the City of Newport met on the above date in the 
Council Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll call, Bain, Henning, Obteshka, 
Henson, Patrick, Bertuleit, and Sabanskas were present. 
 Staff attending was as follows: City Manager O’Neal, City Recorder Hawker, 
City Attorney Firestone, Community Development Director Bassingthwaite, Finance 
Director Riessbeck, and Police Chief Miranda. 
 

PRESENTATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
 Proclamation honoring the 2008 Newport High School 4A state baseball 
champions. Bain issued a proclamation honoring the Newport High School team on its 
state 4A championship. He proclaimed the week of June 15 – 21, 2008, as Newport Cubs 
Baseball Week in Newport. Ken Riley and members of the team accepted the 
proclamation. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 A. Approval of minutes from the City Council work session, executive 
session, and regular meeting of June 2, 2008; 
 B. Report of claims for May 2008; 
 C. Police and Fire Department reports for May 2008; 
 D. Resolution No. 3441 extending workers compensation coverage to city  
  volunteers. 
 MOTION was made by Sabanskas, seconded by Bertuleit, to approve the consent 
calendar as amended. Henson abstained due to a claim paid to Newport Village. The 
motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
 Bertuleit reported on a recent meeting of the Bicycle/Pedestrian Committee. He 
noted that a bike rack location has been identified in Nye Beach, a grant submittal 
deadline is nearing, and the state will be asked to erect additional bike route signs. 
 Henning reported on a recent meeting of the Destination Newport Committee. 
The DNC heard a presentation by PDXposed regarding a 22-minute television show. 
Grady Britton will research this proposal to determine the benefits of participation. The 
website numbers are higher, the media plan was approved, and the committee discussed 
the event/activity criteria and application. It is anticipated that Council will have a draft 
for review by the first meeting in July. O’Neal noted that the DNC might want further 
review of this information possibly delaying delivery to Council.  



 Patrick reported on a meeting sponsored by the Port on the cruise ship feasibility 
study. John Hanson, president of the Northwest Cruise Ship Association attended and 
provided valuable information. He was able to answer a lot of environmental questions 
and what the city could expect if the ships come to Newport. He noted that he believes 
Newport is a good port for cruise ships. 
 Obteshka reported on the recent Library Board retreat. Officers were elected, and 
upcoming programs discussed, including Bridges to Literacy, and the Summer Reading 
Club. Internet circulation is up and the staff is investigating enhanced technology. 
 Obteshka reported on a recent OCZMA meeting. Items discussed include the 
siting of marine reserves, federal timber payments, tsunami preparedness, and the 
evaluation of proposed changes to land use laws. 
 Obteshka reported that the OLCV held a town hall meeting here last week, and 
recommends local governments to take a regional look at transportation, drinking water 
protection, and other issues. OLCV is willing to hold more frequent meetings to discuss 
environmental and livability issues. 
 Obteshka reported that the annual youth fishing derby was held at the reservoir. 
Children were brought up by bus, and the state patrol and ODFW participated in the 
event. 
 Henson reported that the first class of the Newport Citizens Police Academy had 
graduated last week. He read a letter of thanks, and distributed copies to the Council, 
Mayor, police chief, city recorder, and city manager. He thanked the Council for allowing 
his participation in the academy. 
 Bain reported that he had attended the Water Treatment Master Plan and Facility 
Task Force. He reported that the task force would forward a recommendation, to Council, 
to construct a new water treatment plant, along with three other projects.  
 

OFFICER’S REPORTS 
 
 Report of the Mayor. Bain reported that he had received an application for the 
vacancy on the Planning Commission from James McIntyre. He appointed James 
McIntyre to the Planning Commission. MOTION was made by Patrick, seconded by 
Henning, to ratify the Mayor’s appointment. Obteshka noted that he would like to see a 
more diverse Planning Commission, rather than two real estate members. The motion 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Report of the City Attorney. Firestone reported that two air service proposals 
had been received as of the deadline at 5 P.M. today. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 Cindy Ashy requested a clarification to the May 19, 2008 City Council meeting 
minutes. She reported that the threat that she mentioned at the May 19, 2008, Council 
meeting, actually occurred in May of 2006. It pertained to the Georgia-Pacific leaching 
issue and possible groundwater contamination from the Georgia-Pacific pipeline. The 
coordinator made the threat. The way the minutes are written appear that my comments 



related to the current Georgia-Pacific matter that was on the agenda on May 19 and 
tonight. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

Resolution No. 3444 transferring appropriations for fiscal year 2007-08 
budget. Riessbeck explained the appropriations transfer. MOTION was made by 
Bertuleit, seconded by Patrick, to adopt Resolution No. 3444 as presented. The motion 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

RECESS 
 
Council recessed until 7:00 P.M. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 Public hearing and consideration of Resolution No. 3442 regarding state 
revenue sharing. Bain opened the public hearing on state revenue sharing monies at 7:00 
P.M. Riessbeck explained this funding comes from liquor and cigarette tax. Public 
comment on the use of the monies was solicited. There was no comment. The public 
hearing was closed at 7:02 P.M. MOTION was made by Sabanskas, seconded by Patrick, 
to adopt Resolution No. 3442 as presented. Obteshka inquired as to how these revenues 
were calculated. It was noted they are calculated by population. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Public hearing and consideration of Resolution No. 3443 adopting the 2008-
09 city budget. Bain opened the public hearing at 7:03 P.M. O’Neal reported that the 
Budget Committee had approved and forwarded the budget to the City Council for 
adoption. Riessbeck explained that when the Budget Committee approved the budget, 
they also forwarded a recommendation to include the Bay Boulevard sewer project, in 
addition to the Elizabeth Street sewer project that was already included. The wastewater 
surcharge revenue estimates were revised, and an additional $180,000, recognized from 
this revenue source, was added to the previously budgeted $240,000 to accomplish the 
inclusion of the Bay Boulevard sewer project. She reported that the water treatment plant 
supervisor requested a small change of $63,000 from the water fund. This is for two 
small projects that were budgeted this year, but will not be completed until next year. 
Patrick inquired as to what request was shorted to allow for the Bay Boulevard project. 
Riessbeck noted that the contingency and reserves for future improvements were 
decreased, and a new revenue source was developed. She noted that without the new 
revenue, the reserve would have been reduced to zero, and the contingency to about 
$10,000 to include the Bay Boulevard sewer project. Because staff took a deeper look at 
estimated revenues, we were able to keep $80,000 in contingency, and a reserve of 
$100,000, and nothing was shorted. Bertuleit inquired as to whether the $5 surcharge had 
to be preauthorized. Riessbeck noted that it was anticipated that Council would enact that 
surcharge during the utility rate increases in July. She noted that the surcharge is ongoing 
and could generate revenue in future years for future projects. Although, it would not 
completely pay for projects, it could be used for borrowing leverage. Obteshka stated that 



his read was that the Budget Committee consensus was not to deplete the reserves and 
contingency, but to fully fund the Bay Boulevard and the Elizabeth Street projects. He 
noted that he feels that this action ignores the consensus vote. Bain noted that the Budget 
Committee agreed to fund one-third of the Elizabeth Street project, and all of the Bay 
Boulevard project, with an eye toward completing the Elizabeth Street project later in the 
year so that it could be funded out of next year’s budget if necessary. Bain noted that it 
has always been the desire to maintain the reserves and contingency, and they were 
reduced but retained. Bertuleit noted that rates had to raised, and that some items that 
were looked at, such as additional people, etc., would not necessarily have to be 
approved. O’Neal noted that the proposal does not actually take money from the general 
fund as the proposal keeps the budget intact, and the sewer fund speaks for itself. He 
noted that it was his understanding that staff do whatever possible to make those two 
projects happen. It was not the intention of staff to ignore the direction of the Budget 
Committee. He noted that it is important that the enterprise funds start to pay for 
themselves. One of the reasons the city has infrastructure problems is that the enterprise 
funds have not been paying for themselves. Bain noted that the general fund items are a 
direct reflection of the goals and objections of the City Council. These items represent 
people, services, and materials required to carry out the goals and objectives of the City 
Council. Bain asked for public comment. David Allen thanked Council for participating 
in the budget process. He requested that the e-mail he had forwarded to the city manager 
earlier in the day be made a part of the record. O’Neal reported that he had distributed 
copies of this message to the City Council at their work session. He stated that he does 
not agree with the staff proposal, as far as the direction of the Budget Committee, but that 
Council is the body that will have to decide. There was no further comment. The public 
hearing was closed at 7:20 P.M. MOTION was made by Sabanskas, seconded by 
Henning, to adopt Resolution No. 3443 as presented directing the staff to attach a memo 
to the budget to fund the shuttle on Sunday at a cost of $10,000. Bertuleit noted that he 
will vote no because staff could have found money in other areas. Patrick noted her 
concurrence with David Allen and Roger Snelling. Obteshka noted that he will also vote 
no, suggesting that the focus should be on infrastructure rather than 14 FTE or things that 
could be put off to later date. The motion carried in a voice vote, with Bertuleit, Patrick, 
and Obteshka voting no. 
 
 Continued public hearing to consider the adoption of File Nos. 1-CP-08 and 
2-CP-08 as part of the Transportation System Plan update. Bassingthwaite noted that 
there is a memo in the packet regarding the need to continue this hearing. MOTION was 
made by Sabanskas, seconded by Patrick, to continue this public hearing to July 21, 2008. 
The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
  
 Further consideration of an agreement with Georgia-Pacific for use of rights-
of-way for a treated effluent pipeline. Bain explained that testimony would be limited 
to three minutes for folks who have previously testified, and five minutes for folks who 
have not yet testified. He noted that the document under discussion is a draft, and there 
will likely be significant and substantial changes before it is approved by the City 
Council. He noted that this has been an issue for a number of years, and this group is the 
bringing it forward to make it legal, whole, and fair to the residents and industry. 



 Firestone clarified several issues, noting that the main presentation will be a 
discussion of issues that have been identified. One of the pipelines crosses private 
property. It now appears that it is within the widened ODOT right-of-way. At the May 
19, 2008 meeting, Mr. Ragsdale stated that the entire pipeline along 3rd Street is within 
the easement granted in 1956. It appears that a short portion on one short block may be 
outside the easement. Also at question is what is involved in right-of-way. The public 
within the city owns it, and adjacent property owners may have a contingent future 
interest, but not a current interest in property. 
 It was noted that the materials in the draft should not take preference over 
alternate language or provisions. Agreement duration could be ongoing renewals without 
end or a fixed term of five, ten, or fewer years. There are many alternatives to ongoing 
renewals. There is an ongoing DEQ process that may result in a decision within one or 
two years. One option is to have short initial term with the matter being reviewed and 
renewed after the DEQ permit issue is resolved. Another issue is the annual fee. The 
current draft is $10,000. It could be a greater fixed fee, a fee based on volume, length of 
line, or a higher fee, with a possible reduction for better effluent or treatment, or it could 
include a provision that requires GP to reimburse the city for monitoring. The city could 
obtain a simple appraisal that would evaluate the real estate value of the license 
agreement that may not include risk as a factor. The adjustment of the annual fee was 
discussed. The issue of failure to comply was discussed. It is currently written as $500 
daily, but could be changed or include an expressed provision that the line can only be 
used for effluent from the GP plant, and the use for any other effluent could be a 
violation. Section 3 requires GP to report to the city on a monthly basis. Council could 
require more than DEQ reports. Section 4 requires a five million dollar aggregate 
insurance policy with three million dollars per occurrence, unless the company is self-
insured. It has been suggested that the city not allow self-insurance. Bonds and deposits 
were discussed. Section 8 addresses the confidentiality commitment. It is only for 
specific as-built plans, not for the general location. Section 11 provides for abandonment 
in place. Council can consider the abandonment in place of previously abandoned lines. 
Section 24 relates to term and termination, and if section one is changed this section 
would have to change. The city might want to reserve a greater right to terminate. 
Potential additional provisions include a requirement that GP post sign(s) at Nye Beach 
regarding the outfall. Another requirement could be that GP perform additional sampling, 
monitoring, and reporting, including at the effluent outfall. Patrick inquired as to how a 
contractor would know if they were working next to the line. It was noted that they are 
included, generally, in the locates.  The as-builts provide an additional level of detail. 
Obteshka inquired as to whether real estate disclosures are required. It was noted that 
adjoining private property owners would not need to disclose a line that is not on their 
property. Bain noted that there is no desire on the part of Council to have infinite term on 
the contract.  
 Bain opened public hearing at 7:47 P.M. He read two written comments into the 
record from Marcus Spink and Jan Jackson requesting support for the GP pipeline 
agreement. 
 Tom Picciano, public affairs manager of GP’s pulp and paper operation in Toledo 
read two letters into the record. One was in his capacity at GP, and one was from him as a 
resident. He related GP’s guiding principles, noting that the first two are integrity and 



compliance. He noted that GP does not want the appearance of noncompliance. He 
reported that non-toxic effluent goes through the city to the outfall. He noted that at some 
point in the past, the billing ceased. GP is current on its payments. He reported that this 
arrangement has been mutually beneficial over the years. He urged Council to approve 
the document in its current form.  
 Tom Picciano, speaking as a resident of Newport, noted that he chose to live here 
before his job at GP. He reported that he regularly walks along the beach, and supports 
Newport and its amenities. He volunteers for non-profit organizations, and questioned 
why the many GP employees living in Newport would want to “foul their own nest.” 
 Willie Worman, union environmental representative for GP, talked about Marion 
County leachate, noting that GP has not accepted leachate from Marion County since 
2005. He urged Council to approve the agreement as written. 
 David Cramer noted that he believes in the sincerity and commitment of GP to be 
safe and clean. He inquired as to whether equipment malfunctions, whether there are 
accidents, and whether people ever get hurt. He suggested that an accident could ruin a  
tourist season. He stated that the contract needs careful attention before approval. 
 Tom Rudd thanked Council for the opportunity to speak to this issue. He noted 
that he agrees with the letters written by Marcus Spink and Jan Jackson. He stated that he 
enjoys walking, fishing, crabbing, and clamming. He reported that he has witnessed 
firsthand how GP meets compliance and its commitment to OSHA, noting that the mill 
would shut down the line before there was a safety issue. He voiced support of the 
agreement as written. 
 James McClure stated that he supports the agreement as written. He noted that he 
participates, votes, and shops locally. He stated that he values community activities and 
the environment, and wants 10,000% compliance from GP. He noted that a strong, stable 
economy is crucial.  
 Martin Hoelstra stated that the mill is a compliance leader and is responsible for 
complying with every single letter and spirit of the law. He noted that this is not a 
nameless, faceless corporation. He regularly uses Nye Beach. He stated that he is well 
aware of what is in air and water discharges from the mill. He supports the agreement as 
written. 
 Darlene Webster stated that she is active in the community and an employee of 
GP. She noted that she would not work for a company without environmental safeguards. 
She supports the agreement as currently written. 
 Brian Berg stated that he owned and operated a business on the Bayfront for 18 
years. He agreed with the comments made about GP and its commitment to the 
community. He urged approval of the agreement as presented. 
 Mike Miller reported that he has worked for GP for 33 years. He voiced support 
of the previous comments and the agreement as written. He noted that GP is the largest 
recycler west of the Rockies. 
 Brian Peterson voiced his support for the continuation of the agreement with GP. 
He noted that GP supports athletics, arts, and the economy. He stated that he expects 
businesses to follow the rule of law, and noted that is what GP has done. He urged 
Council to approve the agreement as presented. 
 Larry Davis stated that what happens in Newport affects what happens in Toledo. 
He noted that GP products help people live a better life. He reported that GP recycles a 



billion pounds of paper a year, and is the largest containerboard mill west of the Rockies. 
He recommended letting DEQ handle the health issues, and the city should focus on what 
the pipeline is and that relationship. He agreed that the beaches have risk, but not from 
effluent. He reported that divers inspect the outfall every year, and they see fish. He 
stated that the risk he is concerned with is rip tides, logs, and natural ocean dangers. He 
suggested that if funds are available from GP, they should be used for education. 
 Karl Schumacher reported that he is a technical superintendent for GP. He noted 
that GP complies with permits, and goes beyond compliance requirements when possible. 
He urged folks to seek answers in DEQ files, noting that GP tests regularly. He stated that 
things do happen, but the treatment system has a seven-day retention time. In seven days, 
GP could react to an accident or shut down the effluent flow. He recommended the city 
be copied on DEQ reports. 
 Ron Train spoke in support of the proposed agreement. He noted that he recreates 
on the Newport beaches and in local waters. During past decade, he has fished, crabbed, 
and observed birds, porpoises, and whales near the outfall. He stated that this effluent is 
similar to seawater and should be discharged into the ocean. He stated that integrity and 
compliance are GP’s top two core values. 
 Jason Jones expressed support of the existing license agreement. He stated that he 
works, shops, plays, fishes, uses the beach, visits the lighthouses, and the aquarium in 
Newport. He reported that he is a volunteer firefighter. He stated that GP employees 
provide an economic boost to the community, and that the mill is environmentally 
regulated through federal and state agencies. 
 Chris Krumland voiced support of the license agreement. He stated that he fishes 
and hunts birds, and is a responsible citizen who cares about the environment. He 
suggested that concerns be addressed through the DEQ. He stated that the city should be 
supportive of the mill, noting that is not tourists that keep the local economy alive, but the 
GP mill. 
 Charlie Plybon stated that he does not support the lease agreement as written. He 
reiterated that the Surfriders Foundation understands that the mill operates under full 
compliance with the DEQ permit. He stated that the permit does not meet the Clean 
Water Act. This is an issue with DEQ. He noted that it was never the intent to shut down 
the mill, and he understands the mills economic impact and benefits. He stated that the 
Surfrider Foundation chapter formally requests Council to support requests to the DEQ to 
reconsider the permit, and establish a water-monitoring program. He noted that Surfriders 
is monitoring water in the pipeline. He noted that the impact of effluent in ocean is 
unknown, and discharge limits on bacteria have not been established.  
 Melissa Jackson spoke in support of the agreement. She suggested that it would 
be shortsighted to send recycling to another area. 
 Sam Adams stated that he is the environmental superintendent at the mill where 
his job is to ensure compliance, by striving for environmental excellence. He noted that it 
is important to remember that GP is a natural resource company – wood chips and 
recycled paper, and that the effluent is not dissimilar to a tree falling into a stream. The 
effluent is from the part of tree that could not be used in making paper. He asked that 
Council consider the license carefully, as GP is important to the area. He noted that the 
agreement needs to be fair and long-term, and he urged Council to support the document 
in its current form. 



 Claire McGee stated that she does not support the license, noting that the loss far 
exceeds the proposed annual payment of $10,000. She stated that tourism is a major 
coastal industry, and that visitors spend a significant amount of money. She noted that 
people want to visit sustainable and environmentally sound communities. She inquired as 
to whether the city should risk tourism dollars for $10,000. She requested full disclosure 
as to any relationship that the City Council might have with Koch Industries, GP, and its 
affiliates. She suggested that Henson might have a conflict of interest if he owns stock or 
receives a pension from GP. She stated that Sabanskas is the chief financial officer of the 
GP credit union and therefore has a potential conflict of interest. Henson reported that he 
has never worked for GP, but did work for Greenberry Tank and Iron, a subcontractor of 
GP. Sabanskas reported that she works for a credit union, but that her employer has no 
affiliation with the GP mill. She noted that the biggest user of the credit union is not the 
mill, and that the business would not fail if GP closed.  
 Victor Kehrli stated that he supports GP’s efforts. 
 Cindy Ashy noted that she would like to see a water-monitoring program that 
includes ground water testing along the pipeline and a timeline built into the contract for 
the thorough testing of groundwater, pipelines, and the mixing zone. She suggested the 
contract be reevaluated based on findings. She disagreed with the confidentiality clause, 
suggesting that the public has a right to know every detail of the pipeline. She inquired as 
to whether Henning had received a copy of the easement he requested at the May 19 
meeting. It was noted that the easement had been included in the Council packet. She 
suggested the city look into the easement expiration. She noted that it makes more sense 
to look at both active pipelines simultaneously. 
 Firestone noted that there are a couple of documents, and the easement does not 
have a termination date. He noted that the documents termed “franchise agreements” 
expired some time ago. He stated that the city is still accepting written submissions if 
anyone needs more time or has additional information to provide,. 
 Shaun Barclay expressed support of the GP agreement as written. He reported that 
he is a financial analyst for GP. He urged Council to look at facts and follow the vote of 
the majority. 
 Alaeldin Ari stated that he works for the mill, pay taxes, and shops in the city. 
The mill is important to his family and the city, and he supports the agreement in its 
current form. 
 Mike Woods stated that he is a GP employee, and that the plant ships out 
thousands of rolls of paper that is primarily used for food packaging from Mexico to BC. 
He stated that he is a resident of Newport, enjoys walking on the beach, votes, and 
believes the mill is important to the Newport economy. He urged approval license 
agreement as drafted. 
 Louisa Hamachek stated that as a tourist and mother who loves Newport, she 
hopes the city will ensure her family’s safety in swimming at Nye Beach. She 
recommended larger fines for noncompliance for toxic releases. 
 Greg Niles stated that he began surfing at Nye Beach in 1990, and the water is 
brown. He noted that he likes to think that the industry would work to make it safer. He 
noted that he does not feel like this is about stopping industry or shutting them down, 
rather about how to do business better in the future. He noted that he believes the pipeline 



should be monitored more properly and independently, and this cost should be borne by 
the permittee. He suggested larger fines for failures.  
 Melinda McComb stated that the perpetual easement allows for a pulp and paper 
mill waste transmission line. She stated that this has been violated with the Marion 
County waste, invalidating the easement. She noted that the agreement expired in 1997. 
She suggested the city impose restrictions in the agreement. She recommended 
protections for property owners along the pipeline from soil and well contamination. She 
discussed disclosure of the lines during real estate transactions. She noted the John Nye 
Road pipeline abandonment, and the presence of asbestos in wetlands. 
 Jana Thrift stated that she is a tourist who cares a lot about the ocean and 
Newport. She noted that she believes that the GP employees have faith in their company 
that they are doing the right thing. She suggested this is an opportunity for both parties to 
stand behind what they have put out to their employees. She stated that the pipeline was 
constructed 50 years ago and what may have been safe then may not be safe now. She 
recommended using new technologies to determine what is real. She noted that this is an 
opportunity to ask GP to do more; to make sure they are not poisoning the ocean and us. 
She stated that no one wants to see GP shut down – just accountable. 
 Carrie Stottlemyre stated that she feels lucky to live in such a beautiful place. She 
noted that she was drawn here because Newport offers small town charm, outdoor 
activities, beautiful beaches, and cultural opportunities, and she cares deeply about 
keeping the ocean safe. She credits her job at the mill as the primary reason she has been 
able to stay in the place she loves. She stated that she has never worked for an 
organization as committed to compliance as GP. She expressed her full support for 
approval of the currently drafted agreement. She noted that it is important to her and her 
family and critical to the economic vitality and health of Newport and Lincoln County. 
 Maria Swan read an article from the June 6 edition of the News Times. 
 Stace Gordon supported the agreement as written. He suggested it is a better use 
of time to approve the agreement as written, and work on developing a strong 
partnership. 
 Joe Hayward stated that he had been an engineer at GP from for eight years. He 
noted that mill workers are hard working and honest, but influenced by their employer. 
He noted that the mill makes a valuable product that we all need, but that a “he said/she 
said” attitude exists. He stated that dilution is the first part of pollution mitigation, and 
suggested that monitors should look at parts per million. He stated that what is reportable 
is reported, and that employees receive bonus pay if there are no reportable incidents. He 
suggested the city look at total tonnage of discharge into the ocean, noting that there are 
many hundreds of thousands of chemicals at the mill and they have to come out in the air, 
paper, or water. He said that things happen on weekends and nights that do not get 
reported because there is no one there to keep a close eye on things. He stated that on 
some days, we would open up all the faucets to improve the water usage, so we could 
have that as a number to work with. He suggested looking at what GP tells reports 
because they control testing. He stated that independent testing is needed to verify what is 
being measured. He suggested a partnership agreement with GP. He suggested that the 
fee should be free or reflect the cost of litigation. 
 Nyla Jebousek thanked Hayward for his comments. She also thanked Firestone 
for bringing up the issue that both pipelines are not totally covered under easements. She 



suggested phasing out the discharge, and placing cameras in the pipelines to monitor the 
condition of the pipe. She recommended a task force to study the issue. She suggested 
studying the value of the license. She noted that an appraisal would be more than a 
simple real estate appraisal. She recommended improved signage. 
 Jenny Stokes and Leela Kries-Stokes addressed Council regarding closing the 
loop and ocean dumping.  Stokes stated that accountability cannot be expected from the 
Koch Brothers., and that no one will compensate us for illegal discharges or spills. 
 Emma Velasco spoke as a representative of the Latino community. She suggested 
signage in Spanish so Latino beach users are aware of the water health. 
 Marcia Schwartz distributed two books regarding research about synthetic 
chemicals since WWII. She noted that most chemicals, other than heavy metals, did not 
exist before WWII, and today, every child is born with an average of 100 detectible 
synthetic chemicals in their blood. She recommended a moratorium on even using 
dilution because unless it is in closed vat, it is not considered a solution. Once a diluted 
mixture seeps into the soil or settles into the ocean, it becomes concentrated. She 
suggested that what is going out in Toledo might have nothing to do with what might be 
found with soil and water testing in Newport. She stated that the DEQ reports are 
worthless, and that bioaccumulation is a very big problem. She urged Council to go slow, 
read the book, and require basic testing in any agreement. 
 Ellen Bristow noted that she is opposed to a quick and permanent agreement for 
the use of the effluent pipeline. She noted that it would be interesting to see what has 
accumulated there and what the potential effect is going to be. She urged Council to go 
slowly. 
 Ernest Brown stated that Council needs to think about is what is in the right-of-
way that the city is allowing GP to use; what is in the pipeline; what is the city obliged to 
do. He inquired as to whether the city could be held liable for life or damages from 
contact with the contents of the pipeline. He inquired about the impact to businesses in 
town if the city allows questionable discharge. He urged Council to think about their 
constituents.  
 Susan Pilling noted that this discussion is not about whether the mill is a good 
employer or should be closed down or whether we feel comfortable about being in the 
water at Nye Beach, but about being informed and instituting appropriate checks and 
balances. She suggested that the agreement stipulate that the lines be used for effluent 
from Toledo containerboard mill only. She stated that she does not believe that the DEQ 
regulation alone is a safeguard. She noted that this is a great opportunity for state of the 
art technology. 
 Bain reported that Roger Hart had submitted written public comment regarding 
the possible breach of contract by GP for allowing the Marion County leachate to travel 
through the effluent lines into the outfall.  . 
 F. J. Taylor stated that he believes this is an emotional issue, and that there is 
sincerity on both sides. He noted that GP is obvious a long-time part of the community 
and needs to stay, but should be held accountable for its actions. He noted that granting a 
permanent lease or agreement to any corporation is sound. He stated that corporations go 
on forever, and leaving them to monitor their own water quality is like the fox guarding 
the hen house. He stated that he would like to see independent testing. He noted that it 
does not seem like the positions are that far apart. He suggested that Council seriously 



deliberate the matter and determine whether a temporary extension can be granted while 
working on the finer points of a longer-term agreement. 
 Eileen Obteshka reported that she sees the plume that is out there. She reiterated 
that GP is in compliance, but that state and federal laws are not being taken into 
consideration. This is an opportunity to sit down and make it better. Councilor Obteshka 
disclosed that Eileen is his spouse. 
 Wendy Engler stated that the more that Newport flourishes so will Toledo. She 
reported that her first introduction to the effluent line was when a car had sunk into the 
pavement near the Sylvia Beach Hotel, and contents from the GP pipeline were bubbling 
out of the hole. She suggested that this could be a win-win situation, but that Council 
cannot rely on current standards. She reported that both of her dogs died of cancer after 
walking on the beach. 
 Daniel McCarthy addressed contract issues. He stated that he has no doubt of 
sincerity of the residents and GP employees. He noted that the GP mantra was to approve 
the agreement as written, but there are many issues with the agreement itself. He referred 
to Paragraph 23 of the agreement – GP shall expressly have the right to assign or transfer 
this license agreement – and inquired as to how anyone guarantee that the next owner 
would operate the pipeline with integrity and compliance. He suggested applying brakes 
to the process and looking at the agreement as a whole; put together a task force; and 
come up with a win-win situation. He noted that every discharge is unpermitted when it 
occurs on unlicensed agreement, or on Third Street, that is not part of the original 
agreement. He suggested revisiting the original easement. He noted that easements 
should never be perpetual – not even for decades - due to unanticipated issues. 
 Bain closed the public hearing at 10:10 P.M., noting that the matter will be 
continued until at least the second meeting in July. He thanked participants for their 
patience, candor, and good nature, noting the importance of dealing with this as a 
community.  
 Obteshka noted that Council needs good information before a decision can be 
made either way. He thanked participants for coming and making comments. 
 Firestone inquired as to whether Council wished to provide guidance to staff on 
issues, or whether they would like staff to gather more information. He inquired as to 
whether there were Councilors who would like to be more formal and direct staff to 
further investigate the term or obtain an appraisal. Bertuleit noted that there are very 
knowledgeable people, and it would be great if four or five of those folks could get 
together and come up with their own ideas. Patrick requested a written copy of the 
issues discussed at the beginning of the meeting.  
 Firestone noted that staff could obtain appraisal for about $5,000 of the real estate 
value, but that he had no idea what any other type of appraisal would cost. 
 Bain suggested that a motion be made to direct staff to inquire as to the relative 
cost of appraisal and what we might get from that and within reason be authorized to 
proceed in that regard. Obteshka inquired as to whether the city would want more than 
one appraisal. He noted that Eco Northwest has office in Portland and Eugene, but had no 
idea what they would charge.  
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:20 P.M. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ ______________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder   William D. Bain, Mayor 

 


	PRESENTATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	ACTION ITEMS

